GALAXY CONTROL SYSTEMS

635-FTS Factory Programming Guide

(Supported on 635-CPU v10.4.9 - or later)

Factory Program & Flash with a 635 Factory Test Station(FTS) GALAXY TECHNICAL GUIDE + 1st EDITION + SEP 2015



GALAXY	Version 10.4.9
Control	
Systems	

How to Use a 635 Factory Test Station to Program/Restore Boards to their Factory Defaults. The "635-CPU Factory Test Station" is a built-in feature of the 635 v10.4.9 (or later), which was released September 2015. This feature allows a 635-CPU to function as a Factory Test Station in a real Field Installation situation. The embedded *FTS Mode* can be used to perform a *factory tests* and restore *factory*-

The embedded FTS Mode can be used to perform a factory tests and restore factory default settings & flash code on both 635-series & 600-series boards.

1st Edition - Sep 2015	Copyright © 2015 • Galaxy Control Systems • All rights reserved
	Information in this document is subject to change without notice. Therefore, no claims are made as to the accuracy or completeness of this document. No part of this document may be reproduced, copied, adapted, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without the express written consent of Galaxy Control Systems. Copyright protection claims include all forms and matters of copyrighted material and information, including but not limited to, material generated from the software programs, which are displayed on the screen such as icons, look and feel, etc. Trademarks Microsoft [*] , Windows [*] , and SQL Server [*] are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. and other countries. Adobe [*] , Acrobat [*] are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems Inc.
Galaxy Control Systems	
3 North Main Street	
Walkersville MD 21793	
800.445.5560	
www.galaxysys.com	

Table of Contents

1.	Overview: The 635 Factory Test Station (embedded FTS)5
	Introduction to the "Built-in" 635 Factory Test Station Mode5
	PROPER TEST TOOLS & CABLES
	Requirements & Recommendations7
	HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS7
	POWER AND CABLES7
	NETWORK STIPULATIONS7
	SOFTWARE TOOL NEEDED7
	OTHER STIPULATIONS7
2.	Preparing Test Tools and Files8
	What's on the Factory CD
	Finding Alternate S28 Flash Files
	HOW TO INSTALL & CONFIGURE TERATERM9
	INSTALLING TERATERM EMULATOR9
	CONFIGURING SERIAL PORT SETTINGS
3.	Programming Factory Flash via embedded 635 Web Page (Method-A) 11
	FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD IN THE FIELD
	HOW TO FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD – METHOD-A
	STEP-1 INSTALL THE FACTORY TEST CABLE (PN 81-0680-00)12
	STEP-2 LAUNCH the Embedded 635 Web Server Page (METHOD-A)13
	STEP-3 UPLOAD ALTERNATE S28 FLASH FILE (Optional Step – used only if needed)14
	STEP-4 SELECT THE FLASH VERSION LINK
	STEP-5 ENTER SERIAL NUMBER & BEGIN FLASHING TARGET BOARD16
	STEP-6 RESET TARGET BOARD
	STEP-7 RECONFIGURE BOARD ID (600-SERIES ONLY)19
	STEP-8 REMOVE THE FACTORY CABLES
	STEP-9 LOADING DATA & CONFIRMING OPERATION
4.	Program Factory Flash using TeraTerm Emulator (Method-B)
	HOW TO FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD IN THE FIELD

	STEP-1 INSTALL CABLES AT THE TARGET PANEL	22
	STEP-2 LAUNCH THE TEST TOOL	23
	STEP-3 OBTAIN BOARD SERIAL NUMBER & BOARD ID	23
	STEP-5 BEGIN "FTS" MODE	24
	STEP-6 UPLOAD AN ALTERNATE S28 FILE (optional)	25
	STEP-7 PROGRAM THE CORRECT S28 FLASH (EMBEDDED VS. UPLOADED)	26
	STEP-8 CONFIGURE BOARD SERIAL NUMBER	27
	STEP-9 RESETTING THE TARGET BOARD	28
	STEP-10 ADDRESSING THE TARGET BOARD (600-MODEL ONLY)	28
	STEP-11 REMOVING CABLES	29
	STEP-12 LOADING DATA & CONFIRMING OPERATION	29
5.	Appendix – TIPS and HELP	30
	Related Galaxy Reference Manuals:	30
	About Loading the System Data	30
	Tips for Finding a Board ID within System Galaxy	31
	FINDING A 600-DPI BOARD ID (FROM READER PROPERTIES SCREEN)	31
	FINDING A 600-DIO BOARD ID – (FROM INPUT/OUTPUT PROPERTIES SCREEN)	32
	FINDING A 600-SERIES BOARD ID (FROM THE CONTROLLER PROPERTIES SCREEN)	33
	FINDING a CPU IP Address (IN THE CONTROLLER PROPERTIES SCREEN)	34
	How to Install the 635 Web Server Config Tool	35
	INSTALLING THE 635 WEB SERVER CONFIGURATION TOOL	35
	USING THE 635 WEB SERVER CONFIGURATION TOOL	36

Table of History - Document Version & Features

Date	Version & Editions	Descriptions
SEP 2015	SG 10.4.9 1 st Edition	635-CPU Flash v10.4.9 (or later) supports <u>Built-in Factory Test Station (FTS)</u> : Factory Test Station - provides the ability to perform factory tests on a target board or to reprogramming the factory-default settings and flash code. File transfer requires the Web Server or Terminal supporting XMODEM protocol.

1. Overview: The 635 Factory Test Station (embedded FTS)

This guide provides instructions for using the 635 Factory Test Station (FTS) to test and reprogram boards.

Introduction to the "Built-in" 635 Factory Test Station Mode

The 635-CPU is designed with the **635 Factory Test Station (FTS)** built into its embedded system. The Factory Functions have been added to the embedded *635 Web Server*, so that a technician can perform factory flashing using the native Ethernet connection - thus allowing the *target board* to remain connected to its field panel.

Capabilities of the 635-CPU(FTS) v10.4.9 (or higher) ...

- **Restore the factory-default programming and S28 Flash Code** for 600/635 circuit boards. (THIS GUIDE)
- Run Factory Tests on 600/635 circuit boards. (See 635-FTS Factory Testing Guide)
- Continues to support normal *board configuration* and *board test features*.

The Factory Test Station Process using the 635 Web Server ...

- 1. Install the Factory Test Cable (PN 81-0680-00)
- 2. Launch the 635 Web Server (PC/Browser)
- 3. Execute factory functions (Program Factory Flash or Run Factory Tests)
- 4. Exit Factory Test Station & Reset Board



Diagram of Factory Test Station process using embedded 635 Web Server

PROPER TEST TOOLS & CABLES

The table shows which cables & tools are used for both methods of factory programming in the field setting.

You can use the **Embedded Web Server** or a **Terminal Emulator** that supports XMODEM protocol (such as VanDyke, HyperTerminal, etc). TeraTerm is a suitable open source emulator that is provided on the Factory Test CD.

	METHOD-A	METHOD-B
	Embedded 635 WEB SERVER	TERMINAL EMULATOR
TEST TOOL	Embedded 635 WEB SERVER	TeraTerm or equivalent installed on Laptop - must support XMODEM protocol
	using Native Ethernet Connection	using Direct RS-232 Serial Connection
	PC/Browser must be able to access the CPU IP Address	Laptop/Notebook
Factory Cable	• 14-PIN Factory Test Cable PN 81-0680-00	• 14-PIN Factory Test Cable PN 81-0680-00
Additional Cables	No additional cables needed	• Serial RS-232 COM Cable PN 81-2100-00 a.k.a. the Controller/CPU Programming Cable.
		• USB to 9-PIN Serial Converter (PN 81-1015-00) Only needed if your laptop doesn't have a 9-pin serial port
CPU /Flash ver.	635-CPU(FTS) / v10.4.9 or higher PN 20-0635-50	635-CPU(FTS) / v10.4.9 or higher PN 20-0635-50
choices	Use the embedded flash on 635-CPU(FTS)Upload alternate flash to match field system	Use the embedded flash on 635-CPU(FTS)Upload alternate flash to match field system
Special Boards	Special boards: 600-CPU, 635-OEM (OTIS), 635-CTM (Card Tour from a <i>separate S28 file</i> . All alternate s28 files are found on t), 635-ERM (Enrollment Reader Module) must load their flash he Factory Test Station CD.

Diagram Showing Both Methods for Factory Resetting Boards:



Factory Test Station in field setting - showing both methods (Embedded Web Page or Terminal Emulator).

IMPORTANT: Normal access control operations are suspended during the Factory Test Station Mode. Plan accordingly. It typically takes *less than 10 minutes* to factory program board from start to finish.

Requirements & Recommendations

HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS

- 1. FTS Mode requires a 635-CPU running v 10.4.9 (or later) PN 20-0635-50.
- 2. The Target Board can be 600-series or 635-series model.
- 3. The 635-CPU(FTS) supports uploading an older/alternate S28 flash different than the embedded version .
 - a) You can upload a version of S28 that matches the field system.
 - b) You can upload an S28 file for a special board.
 - c) You can upload an alternate S28 flash for one target board at a time.

POWER AND CABLES

- 1. +12 VDC power must be applied/ON for the 635-CPU & Target Board (supplied by the panel power supply).
- 2. The 635-CPU will require using the correct 14-PIN Factory Data Ribbon Cable PN 81-0680-00.

NETWORK STIPULATIONS

- 1. You should be able to connect to your *635-CPU(FTS) embedded web page* by entering the IP Address into a browser anywhere on the network.
- 2. IF you don't know the IP Address, you should be able to look up the *last-known IP Address* in the SG Controller Programming screen.
- 3. IF you cannot obtain or cannot connect to the 635-CPU(FTS) embedded web page , then you can use ...
 - a) Use **TeraTerm*** or equivalent and a direct Serial Programming Cable to connect to the CPU serial port.
 - b) Or use the 635 Web Config Tool *to auto-detect the CPU's MAC Address (which requires the panel door to be open and the local PC to be on the same network segment as the panel). Once you connect to the CPU this way, you can find (or correct) the CPU IP Address by clicking the CPU Serial number link then you can connect to the embedded panel status page again via the web browser)
 - c) Optionally, you can open the embedded web page by temporarily connecting directly into the *CPU Ethernet port with a Cat-5 cable (standard cable should work).*

* The install EXE files for the TeraTerm emulator and 635 Web Server Config Tool are both on the Factory CD.

SOFTWARE TOOL NEEDED

- 1. Method-A: If you are using the **embedded** *635 Web Server* to perform the factory functions, you must use a compatible browser. The latest **Firefox browser** is recommended.
- 2. Method-B: if using TeraTerm (*or equivalent terminal emulator*) to perform the factory functions, the following things must be true ...
 - » In this case you will connect to CPU using the RS-232 Serial Programming Cable PN 81-2100-00.
 - » If your laptop doesn't have a 9-pin com port, you will need a USB-Serial Converter PN 81-1015-00.
 - » Connection Parameters must be set to 57600 Baud, 8-bit Data, 1 Stop Bit, No parity, No flow control.
 - » An equivalent emulator must support XMODEM protocol for file transfer (used for "uploading" flash files).

OTHER STIPULATIONS

- 1. The 600/635 Target Boards can be running any version of firmware if they are being factory tested. NOTE: The *FTS-CPU* can only upload flash file for one target board at a time (i.e. DPI, DRM, DSI, DIO, ...)
- 2. Factory Testing is covered in the Factory Testing Guide.

2. Preparing Test Tools and Files

This section covers information about the test tools and files available on the Factory Test Station CD.

What's on the Factory CD ...

The following files/tools are found on the Factory CD ...

FOLDERS	DESCRIPTION
635 Web Server Config Tool *	 Supports configuring CPU Network IP Settings via native Ethernet connection on the CPU. » If you cant connect to the embedded Panel Status page or can't find the IP Address from the SG Controller properties screen, then installing this 635 Web Server Config Tool allows you to auto-detect the 635 CPUs by their MAC Address. (PC must be on same network segment as panel and panel door must be open.) » This can optionally be installed on a Laptop if needed – direct connect using a standard Ethernet cable.
S28 Files	Subfolders contain all the past version of S28 Flash files (organized by hardware model/board type) » The 635-FTS(CPU) can upload one (1) alternate S28 file at a time.
TeraTerm	 Supports flashing and configuring boards via direct connect to the <i>CPU Serial Port</i>. » Can be installed on a Laptop – connect using USB/Serial cable. » Supports "uploading" older/alternate S28 version using XMODEM protocol.
Test Procedure Documentation	Supporting documents for Factory Testing.

Finding Alternate S28 Flash Files ...

If the 635-CPU(FTS) embedded S28 version does not match the system version, and you need to upload the S28 version from CD.

Cases for uploading an alternate S28 flash file:

- The *target board* needs an <u>older version of flash</u> than the embedded FTS version.
- The Factory Test Station *embedded version* cannot flash <u>special boards</u> (600-CPU, 635-CTM, 635-OTIS, 635-ERM,)

<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp							
Organize 🔻 🛛 Includ	de in library 🔻 Share with 💌 Burn	New folder	= • 🔟 🔞				
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре				
🧮 Desktop	📔 600 Config Utility	1/6/2012 2:18 PM	File folder				
🚺 Downloads	635WebServerTool	1/6/2012 2:18 PM	File folder				
🥽 Libraries	📕 S28 files	9/1/2015 10:35 AM	File folder				
	📕 Teraterm	9/1/2015 10:35 AM	File folder				
🖳 Computer	Test Procedure Documentation	9/1/2015 10:36 AM	File folder				

View of the Factor Test folder (Factory Test Station CD)

HOW TO INSTALL & CONFIGURE TERATERM ...

Install and configure the **TeraTerm Emulator only** if you cannot connect to the 635-Factory Test Station(CPU) using the 635 Web Page/browser.

INSTALLING TERATERM EMULATOR

- Insert the Galaxy CD and open the Windows File Explorer window ...
 - 1. Open the Factory Test folder
 - 2. Open the TeraTerm folder
 - 3. Copy the *TeraTerm executable file* to your laptop.
 - 4. Double-click on the *TeraTerm.exe file* to launch the install program
 - 5. Accept the license agreement and all the default settings on each install screen.
 - 6. When finished, the TeraTerm desktop icon should be installed on your desktop.

See the next section for instructions on Configuring the RS-232 Serial Port Settings.

<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>T</u>	ools <u>H</u> elp								
Organize 🔻 Include in library 🔻 Share with 🖛 Burn New folder 🛛 📰 💌 🗍 🕢									
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре						
Nesktop) 600 Config Utility	1/6/2012 2:18 PM	File folder						
ᠾ Downloads	635WebServerTool	1/6/2012 2:18 PM	File folder						
🥽 Libraries	S28 files	9/1/2015 10:35 AM	File folder						
	鷆 Teraterm	9/1/2015 10:35 AM	File folder						
🖳 Computer	Test Procedure Documentation	9/1/2015 10:36 AM	File folder						

CONFIGURING SERIAL PORT SETTINGS

You must correctly set up the *connection parameters* to connect to the 635-FTS (CPU) Board. These settings are used regardless of which Terminal Emulator you choose.

When using the terminal emulator, you must connect the USB Serial Cable from the laptop com port to the Serial Port on the 635-CPU.

- Insert the Galaxy CD and open the Windows File Explorer window ...
 - 1. Launch TeraTerm from the Desktop Icon to open the New Connection window.
 - 2. Click the [Serial] option.
 - 3. Choose the desired **COM Port**.
 - 4. Click [OK] button.
 - 5. From TeraTerm menu, choose **Setup > Serial Port** ... (to configure the connection parameters).
 - 6. Select desired COM Port and the following parameters:
 - » Baud Rate = "57600"
 - » Set Data = 8 bit
 - » Parity = None
 - » Stop Bit = 1 bit
 - » Flow Control = None
 - 7. Click **OK Button** to begin communicating with the board.
 - 8. At this point you can issue the "fts" command as desired see Chapter 4 for instructions.

Tera Term: New co	nnection						
© тср <u>∕і</u> р	Hos <u>t</u> :	myhost.examp	ole.com				
	Service'	✓ History Telnet 3SH	TCP <u>p</u> ort#: 22 SSH <u>v</u> ersion: SSH2				
7		her	Protocol: UNSPE	Tera Term: Serial port set	tup		
Serial	Po <u>r</u> t:	COM1: Commi	unications Port (COM	Port:	COM1	•	ОК
				Baud rate:	57600	•	
	UK	Cancel	Help	<u>D</u> ata:	8 bit	•	Cancel
New Conne	ction win	dow @ ste	ep-1	P <u>a</u> rity:	none	-	
		0		<u>S</u> top:	1 bit	•	<u>H</u> elp
				Flow control:	none	•	
				Transmit dela O mse	ay :c/ <u>c</u> har 0	ms	ec/line

Serial Port Setup window @ step-5

3. Programming Factory Flash via embedded 635 Web Page (Method-A)

This section covers how to factory reset target boards via the embedded 635 Web Tool.

FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD IN THE FIELD

Factory Programming supports two flashing options

- 1. Flashing the target board to the embedded version on the 635-CPU(FTS) Board.
- 2. Flashing the target board to an alternate S28 file version
 - A version that matches the system version in the field.
 - The target board is a special board

REQUIREMENTS FOR USING 635 WEB SERVER (Method-A)

- » a 635- FTS(CPU) v10.4.9 or higher = PN 20-0635-50 (installed in the target panel)
- » a Factory Ribbon Cable = PN 81-0680-00 (installed in the target panel)
- » a Local PC Browser (able to connect to the IP Address of the 635-FTS (CPU))
- » the latest Firefox Web Browser (recommended) NOTE: user can detect the CPU by MAC Address using the 635 Web Tool - see Appendix.
- » the Factory Test Station CD (needed only if an alternate S28 Flash file will be uploaded).



5

ADDITIONALLY: If the target board is a 600-CPU, or is a special board, or simply requires an older system flash than the embedded version on the 635-FTS/CPU, the user must *upload* the appropriate alternate s28 file into the 635-FTS/CPU memory slot. Special boards cannot be flashed with the embedded FTS flash.

HOW TO FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD – METHOD-A

STEP-1 INSTALL THE FACTORY TEST CABLE (PN 81-0680-00)

- 1. Go to the *target panel* and open the controller door.
- 2. Make sure the **power LED** is lit/ON for both the CPU and the *target board*. The board should remain on the I2C Buss during the process.

TIP: You can write down **serial number** of the target board from the sticker on the back of the board. **635 boards begin with 030** ...; and **600 boards begin with 020**...; It is also possible to get the *board serial number* from the embedded *Web Tool's Panel Status page* provided the I2C Data

Buss is operating (16-pin ribbon cable next to the power connector).

- 3. Install the 14-PIN Factory Test Cable (PN 81-0680-00; Ribbon Cable opposite side from power connector)
 - Connect one end of the FTS Cable to the *factory port* of the *CPU Board*
 - Connect the other end of the FTS Cable to the *factory port* of the *target board*

(Factory Ports are located opposite of the I2C Buss).

4. The enclosure door of the target panel must remain open during this process.



STEP-2 LAUNCH the Embedded 635 Web Server Page (METHOD-A)

- 1. Open the **Web Browser** from a *PC/Laptop*.
- 2. Type the CPU's IP Address into the web browser address field.
 - » You can find your CPU IP Address from the SG Software Controller Properties screen look on the CPU tab for the last known IP Address or in the Loop Diagnostics screen if needed.
- 3. Write down the serial number & Board ID of the target board found on the Panel Status page.
 - » If you cannot see the target board, you can get the serial number from the sticker on the back of board.
 - » Also you can find your board ID from the SG Software Configurations look in the controller or device properties screen for a device that is attached to the target board.

IMPORTANT: You must obtain the Serial No. & Board ID of target board before proceeding to next step.

See the Appendix for tips on finding Board Numbers and CPU IP Addresses.

 Click on the <u>Factory Functions</u> link at the bottom of the Panel Status page. (The presence of this link confirms your target board can be flashed using the embedded Web Server.)

	108.0.150						<u>∽</u> ⊽ ×	8 + Google	۵ ا	1
Most Visited	Getting Sta	rted 🗌 Custo	omize Links [] Fre	e Hotmai	Window	s Marketplace	Windows Media	() Windows		
			Sveta	m C.	alary 6	35 Wel	Server			
			byster	ш О.]	Panel S	Status	J Berver			
Model 1	Number:	635								
Local Da	ate/Time:	15:19:44	08/26/2015	SetD	ate/Time					
Unit	No:	001								
Clust	er No:	001								
Serial I	Number:	030000	01		Ev	ent Server	Configuration	2		
Software	Version:	10.4.9		No.	Status	Server IF	Server Port	Local Port		
CPU Nu	unber is:	1		0	Not Used					
Extended (ard Mode	: No		1	Not Used	[
normaniae de										
	1 - 1	down	your	Ser	ial N	o. & I	Board I	D		
3 M	/rite									
3 W	/rite (
3 1		,	Attached B	oards			1			
3 W Serial#	Board#	Status	Attached B Board Type	oards Vers	ion Using	g CPU Fla	ash Update			

Panel Status page

If you cannot connect to the 635-CPU(FTS) using the IP Address in a Web Browser, then you can choose to connect using one of the following options:

- » Use Method-B / TeraTerm on a Laptop and connect directly to the CPU with the Serial Cable (see chapter 4).
- » Use the client-side 635 Web Config Tool to find the MAC Address (*see Appendix* for important instructions on installing/using the 635 Web Tool).

STEP-3 UPLOAD ALTERNATE S28 FLASH FILE (Optional Step – used only if needed)

Alternate flash must be uploaded if you have

- » a *special board* that cannot be flashed from the embedded version on the 635-FTS(CPU)
- » OR if the target board needs to match the field system version (older than the embedded version)

SKIP THIS STEP IF YOU DON'T NEED TO UPLOAD AN ALTERNATE S28 VERSION.

- 1. Insert the Factory Test Station CD into the PC drive.
- 2. Click the **BROWSE button** on the Panel Status page to find the S28 file you need to upload.

HINT: if the *embedded version* column does not show a version link, then you must upload an alternate file.



Factory Functions page

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE ...

SKIP THIS PAGE IF YOU DON'T NEED TO UPLOAD AN ALTERNATE S28 VERSION.

- 3. Navigate to the desired folder on the FTS CD
- 4. Select (highlight) the appropriate **S28 File version**.
- 5. Click **OPEN button** to queue the file.



- 6. The chosen *file name* will appear in the upload queue.
- 7. Click the UPLOAD FILE button to upload the file.



8. Click OK button when the upload is complete.



STEP-4 SELECT THE FLASH VERSION LINK

1. User will click the *appropriate* version link to begin flashing the target board.

IF FLASHING WITH EMB	EDDED VER	SION	
a) Click embedded vei	SION IINK.		
Module	10.4.9	-	
635-Dual Serial Interface	10.4.9	-	
600-Control Module	8 - 9	-	
600-Dual Port Intelligent Module	<u>10.4.9</u>	-	
600-Digital I/O Module	10.4.9		
600-Dual Serial Interface	10.4.9		
508i-Control Module	0.745	-	
635-Enrollment Reader Module			

LASHING WITH UPLO	ADED VER	SION	
Click uploaded vers	ion link.		
Module	<u>10.4.9</u>		L.
635-Dual Serial Interface	10.4.9	-	
600-Control Module	2 <u>4</u> 91		
600-Dual Port Intelligent Module	<u>10.4.9</u>	-	
600-Digital I/O Module	10.4.9	10.4.1	
600-Dual Serial Interface	10.4.9	-	
508i-Control Module	3. .	-	
635-Enrollment Reader Module	2-2		

STEP-5 ENTER SERIAL NUMBER & BEGIN FLASHING TARGET BOARD

1. Enter the correct Serial Number! You should have recorded this number in Step-1 or -2.

635-series target board - serial number must exactly be 8-digits and must begin with zero !

- a. Type "03" (enter a leading zero in front of the '3')
- b. Then omit a zero after the '3' (in order to maintain the 8-digit length)
- c. Then enter the remainder of the board's serial number.

600-series target board - serial number must exactly be 8-digits and must begin with zero !

- a. Type "02" (enter a leading zero in front of the '2')
- b. Then omit a zero after the '2' (in order to maintain the 8-digit length)
- c. Then enter the remainder of the board's serial number.

EXAMPLE: if the board number is "<u>30</u>013162", the user will type "<u>03</u>013162"

Notice that a zero is added before the 3, but omitted after the 3. This maintains the 8-digit number.

The SERIAL NUMBER must start with a zero(0). Serial Number cannot be a duplicate of another serial number.

2. Click OK button to begin flashing.

number. You should note t	Please enter the 8 digit serial number for this board. Be sure the serial number you enter is correct.	3.
To test a board with many Description in the table belo	03013162	ien click on the Board
	OK Cancel	ard with an

Factory Functions - screenshot shows user entering the 8-digit serial number of a target board.

3. When flashing begins, the flashing progress is reported to the Factory Functions Page

635-Otis Elevator Control	1.70	.		
635-Card Tour Control	6 . 0	-		
				n
_				
			Tod	
	REPOR	RT/ACTIVITY	LOG	
Begin FLASH of 600 DIO				
Running Test 1 - Reset t	arget board,	get ID and	. Rev, set CS and BM	
la. resetting target 1	oard.			
Issuing reset				
Reset issuedboard i	eturns: 1D=0	XUUU/, REV=	UXAA, status=UX8U	
1b turning on ADL mor				
1c. setting CS and BM	registers.			=
ld. reading ID & revis	ion numbers.			
Factory Functions - screenshot	showing progre	ess of flashing	target board.	

4. Click the **OK Button** when flashing completes successfully.

Flashing was successful, the board is ready Begin FLASH of 600 DIO Running Test 1 - Reset target 1a. resetting target board.	t CS and BM.	
Issuing reset	atus=0x80	
Turning on ADL 1b. turning on ADL mode. 1c. setting CS and BM registers.		
1d. reading ID & revision numbers. target responds: ID=0x0007, REV=0xAA, status=0x90)	
le. reading CS and BM registers. 1f. setting GPIO ports to initial values.		
test 1 passed. Setting the (on board) FLASH parameters		
Programming the FLASH memory *******		
Programming the FLASH memory - complete Verifying Target FLASH		
All bytes matched Program the configuration data		
Configuration programming - complete		

Factory Functions - screenshot showing flashing complete.

STEP-6 RESET TARGET BOARD

- 1. Click the **Panel Status link** (bottom of page) to return to the Panel Status page.
- 2. User must physically reset the target board by pressing the SW-1 Button on the board.
- 3. When the target board comes online, you should see the correct *serial number* and *flash version*. Click **F5 key** to refresh the Panel Status page – could take a minute for the board to report.
 - » 635-series boards will show the current Board ID according to dipswitch setting. Factory Flashing does not affect dipswitch settings.
 - » 600-series boards will reset to the Factory ID = 34 and must be configured to original ID number.

					Panel S	status		
Model Nur	mber:	635						
Local Date/	Time:	15:42:0	01 08/26/2015	Set	Date/Time			
Unit No	o:	001						
Cluster I	No:	001						
Serial Nun	nber:	03000	001	Event Server Configuration				
Software Ve	ersion:	10.4.9		No.	Status	Server	IP Server Port	Local Port
CPU Numb	oer is:	1		0	Not Used			
Extended Car	d Mod	e: No		1	Not Used			
Number of 1	Users:	0		2	Not Used			
Unacknowledg	ed Log	s: 281		3	Not Used			
							1	
<u> </u>			Attached Bo	ards				
Seria Boa	ard#	Status	Board Type	Versi	Using (PU FI	ash Update	
2302547 3	34 1	JORMAL	DIO	10.4.	1 0		n/a	
Clear Auto-Upd Note: To configu Al Panels Summi anel Configurati	late Tim are and/ ary ion	or test an <u>A</u>	ttached Board	l, click (on the board	s's serial:	number.	
Firmware Update	<u>e</u>							

Panel Status Page – showing a target board after being factory flashing to an alternate S28 version.

STEP-7 RECONFIGURE BOARD ID (600-SERIES ONLY)

- From the Panel Status page, click the board *serial number link* to open the Configuration page.
 - 1. Enter the **correct Board ID** that the target board had <u>before it was factory flashed</u>. Board ID must be valid and unique (1-16 valid).

IMPORTANT: YOU MUST RESTORE THE BOARD's ORIGINAL ID NUMBER. Changing the board's ID will cause you to reconfigure all the attached hardware devices in the SG Software properties .

2. Click the Update Configuration button to save the ID.



600-series Board Configuration Page



STEP-8 REMOVE THE FACTORY CABLES

- 1. Remove the Factory Test Cable (ribbon cable) from the target board.
- 2. Close and secure the panel door.

STEP-9 LOADING DATA & CONFIRMING OPERATION

The panel should be reloaded with the system data after factory flashing is completed.

IMPORTANT: System data MUST be re-loaded to the panel if the target board was a CPU or DSI board.

- 1. **Open System Galaxy** and log in with the master login.
- 2. From the Hardware Tree, right-click on the Loop Name that the target panel belongs to.
- 3. Choose **'Load'** from the context menu, to open the GCS Loader program.
- 4. Select the *Controller Name* of the target panel you need to load.
- 5. Select on the Load Data tab and select to load all data/all cardholders.
- 6. Click the **Load button** and allow the panel to load.
- 7. Perform any walk-tests or system checks to verify that the system is performing correctly.

4. Program Factory Flash using TeraTerm Emulator (Method-B)

This section provides the instructions to reset boards to their factory flash version using the TeraTerm or other emulator.

HOW TO FACTORY FLASHING A TARGET BOARD IN THE FIELD

Restoring a CPU board to factory default settings will reset the network IP Address to the of 192.68.0.150. Likewise on 600-series boards, the board ID will be reset to the factory default ID (34).

LIST OF REQUIREMENTS FOR FLASHING VIA METHOD-B

- a Laptop that can connect directly to the target panel in the field setting.
- the **TeraTerm Emulator program** see Chapter 2 for install instructions if needed.
- the 635-FTS(CPU) = PN 20-0635-50 (running v10.4.9 or higher embedded)
- the 14-pin Factory Test Cable = PN 81-0680-00 (ribbon cable).
- a RS -232 Serial COM Cable = PN 81-2100-00 (9-pin Programming Cable; D-shell connector on both ends).
- a USB to RS-232 Serial Converter = PN 81-1015-00 (USB to 9-pin D-shell; if your PC doesn't have a 9-pin serial port).
- the Factory Test Station CD if a specific <u>alternate S28 Flash file</u> is needed. Alternate s28 flash is required if the target board is a special type (600-CPU, 635-OTIS, 635-CTM, 635-Enrollment Reader Module), or if the target board needs a lower/older version than the embedded version of the 635-FTS(CPU)



* Emulator must support XMODEM for file transfer if uploading flash

STEP-1 INSTALL CABLES AT THE TARGET PANEL

These instructions assume a 635-FTS(CPU) v10.4.9 or higher is already existing in the target panel.

- 1. Open the enclosure door to the Target Panel where the *target board* is installed
- 2. Make sure the 635-FTS(CPU) is powered ON (power LED is lit)
- 3. Make sure the target board is powered ON (power LED is lit)
- 4. The **I2C Data Ribbon Cable can remain connected** to all boards as normal. *In a later step you will issue the boards command that will require the I2C Buss to be connected*.
- 5. Connect the **USB Converter and 9-PIN Serial Cable** from the **Laptop USB Port** to **635-FTS(CPU) Serial Port (J4)**, which located on the front edge of the CPU board.
 - USB Serial Converter = PN 81-1015-00 (USB to 9-pin D-shell).
 - Serial COM Cable = PN 81-2100-00 (9-pin D-shell male/female).
- 6. Connect the 14-PIN Factory Test Cable (PN 81-0680-00) to the 635-FTS(CPU) factory port.
- 7. Connect the other end of the 14-PIN Factory Test Cable to the target board factory port.



STEP-2 LAUNCH THE TEST TOOL

- 1. Launch the TeraTerm emulator from the desktop icon.
- 2. Select the [Serial] option and pick the correct COM port for the CPU.
- 3. Make sure you are using the following connection parameters ...
 - » Baud Rate = "57600"
 - » Set Data = 8 bit
 - » Parity = None
 - » Stop Bit = 1 bit
 - » Flow Control = None

Tera Term: Serial port set	up	×
Port:	СОМ1 -	ОК
Baud rate:	57600 🗸	
<u>D</u> ata:	8 bit 🗸	Cancel
P <u>a</u> rity:	none 🔻	·]
<u>S</u> top:	1 bit 🔹	<u>H</u> elp
Elow control:	none 🔻	·
Transmit dela O mse	y c <u>/c</u> har 0	msec <u>/l</u> ine

Serial Port Setup window

STEP-3 OBTAIN BOARD SERIAL NUMBER & BOARD ID

- 1. Type "boards" (to confirm your CPU is a 635-CPU running v10.4.9 or higher).
- Write down <u>serial number</u> of the target board.
 You can also obtain the serial number from the sticker on the back of the target board.
- 3. Write down of the board ID.
 - » You can also obtain the Board ID from the System Galaxy controller programming screen for the devices attached to this board.
 - » If the target board is a CPU, you must record the IP Address, Network Mask and Gateway Address using the "config" command to view the CPU settings.

a	C 1:57600k	oaud - Tera Term VT		- 🗆 🗙
File Edit Setup Control Window > boards Ref Type S 0 635-CPU Ø 1 635-DPI Ø >	Help Gerial # Version 03000001 10.4.9 02012408 10.4.9	Boot Pos 10.4.9 1 10.4.9 4	Status Age NORMAL 38	Using Ø

The screenshot shows the results of issuing the "boards" command – with 635-DPI (DRM) as the target board.

See the Appendix for tips on finding Board Numbers and CPU IP Addresses.

STEP-5 BEGIN "FTS" MODE

NOTICE: all commands must be typed on lower-case without quote marks "".

1. Type "fts" and press <Enter> key (keyboard) – to display the 635 prompt.



- 2. Type "select" and press <Enter> key to display the list of boards supported.
- 3. Type the *number* for the type that matches your target board.

You can only target one board at a time.

- **1.** 635-CPU
- 2. 635-DPI
- **3.** 635-DSI
- **4.** 600-CPU*
- 5. 600-DPI
- 6. 600-DSI
- **7.** 600-DIO
- 8. 508i CPU
- **9.** 635-ERM*
- 10. 635-Otis Module*
- **11.** 635-CTM*

* Special boards must have their S28 flash to be uploaded.

In the screenshot below, the technician is choosing the 635-DPI (aka 635-DRM)



4. Press ENTER key to continue.

STEP-6 UPLOAD AN ALTERNATE S28 FILE (optional)

SKIP THIS PART IF YOU ARE FLASHING THE TARGET BOARD TO THE EMBEDDED VERSION OF THE 635-CPU(FTS)

Only perform these steps if any of the following cases is true

- A. The target board requires an older flash version.
- B. The target board is a <u>Special Board</u>:
 - 600-CPU
 - 635-CTM (Card Tour Module)
 - 635-OEM (OTIS Elevator Module)
 - 635-ERM (Enrollment Reader Module)
- 1. Insert the Factory Test Station CD into the PC disk drive.
- 2. Type "upload" and press ENTER key.
- 3. From TeraTerm menu, select File > Transfer > XMODEM > Send ... to open the XMODEM Browse window
- 4. Select [1K] Option on the XMODEM Browse window.
- 5. Browse to the appropriate S28 Files folder on the Factory Test Station CD that matches the target board. Factory Test\S28 files\635\635 *~\ and choose the folder for your target board type Factory Test\S28 files\600\600 *~\ and choose the folder for your target board type
- 6. Double-click the *S28 file name* of your desired version to begin the file transfer.
- 7. Wait for the green progress bar to complete. The message box closes when the file is successfully received. Note: you only have a few seconds to select the desired filename. If your transfer times out, the green progress bar on the Send message box will not start. Simply cancel and retry the transfer from step 3.

Tera Term: XMODEM ook n: 🔒 635 DPI Vame Previous Version 635 DPI 528	Send	Tera Term: XMODEM Send
Look in: 🕌 635 DPI Name Previous Version 635 DPI S28	- 0 🕫 🖻 [Tera Term: XMODEM Send
Name		
DPI_635_10-4-1.s28	te modifie 9/11/2015 10: 4/23/2015 9:2	Ilename: DPI_635_10-4-1.s28 Protocol: XMODEM (1K) Packet#: 26 Bytes transfered: 26624 Enased time: 0:09 (2.84KHz)
· [14.8%
File name: DPI_635_10-4-1		Cancel
Files of type: All(".")	<u></u>	
Option Chedsgum OGRC US	Idow	
		🖉 COM3:57600baud - Tera Term VT
		<u>File Edit Setup Control Window H</u> elp
		fts: 635 DPI> upload Send data using the xmodem protocol from your terminal emulator now CC
		Results of download Number of X records = 176 Number of S records = 2301 Number of Bytes = 73608 Maximum Address = 0x012367 XMODEM in errors = 0 Decode errors = 0

TeraTerm main window

STEP-7 PROGRAM THE CORRECT S28 FLASH (EMBEDDED VS. UPLOADED)

- 1. Type "program" and press ENTER key.
- 2. Type the *appropriate choice* at the > prompt:

0 = cancels board programing

1= programs Target Board with embedded 635-CPU Flash (v 10.4.9 (or higher))

2= programs Target Board with *uploaded flash version* (in memory; you uploaded in prior step)

fts: 635 DPI> program Choose from the choices below: Ø cancel the board programming 1 Program the TARGET board with Version 10.4.9 (embedded) 2 Program the TARGET board with Version 10.4.1 (uploaded) ----->

3. Press ENTER key to begin the Factory Flash process.

NOTICE: The chip set test must pass before you the flash can load. If the test fails, simply reissue the **program** command, repeating Step-1, 2, and 3. The board should pass upon subsequent effort.

COM1:57600baud - Tera Term VT -	□ ×
<u>Eile Edit S</u> etup C <u>o</u> ntrol <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	
fts: 635 DPI> program Choose from the choices below: Ø cancel the board programming 1 Program the TARGET board with Version 10.4.9 (embedded) >1	^
Running lest 1 - Reset target board, get ID and Rev, set CS and BM. 1a. resetting target board. Issuing reset Reset issuedboard returns: ID=0x0007, REV=0xAA, status=0x80 Turning on ADL 1b. turning on ADL mode. 1c. setting CS and BM registers. Chip select and bus control set: CS0 lower=0x02 upper=0x02 ctrl=0x18 bus=0x82 CS1 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x82	
CS2 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x84 CS3 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x84 1d. reading ID & revision numbers. target responds: ID=0x0007, REV=0xAA, status=0x90 1e. reading CS and BM registers. 1f. setting GPI0 ports to initial values. test 1 passed	

STEP-8 CONFIGURE BOARD SERIAL NUMBER

- 1. Type the *serial number* of the target board starting with the appropriate prefix:
 - » 635 target board: Type "03" plus the remainder of the serial number on board's sticker
 - 600 target board: Type "02" plus the remainder of the serial number on board's sticker »

For example: Type "03013162" if the board number is "3013162" Notice that a zero is added before the 3, and a zero is omitted after the 3 - to maintain an 8-digit number.

fts: 635 DPI> program Choose from the choices below: Ø cancel the board programming 1 Program the TARGEI board with Version 10.4.9 (embedded) =---->1 Running Test 1 - Reset target board, get ID and Rev, set CS and BM. 1a. resetting target board. Issuing reset Reset issued...board returns: ID=0x0007, REV=0xAA, status=0x80 Turning on ADL Investigation of ADL Investigation of ADL Ib. turning on ADL mode. Ic. setting CS and BM registers. Chip select and bus control set: CS0 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x18 bus=0x82 CS1 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x82 CS2 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x84 CS3 lower=0x00 upper=0x00 ctrl=0x00 bus=0x84 Id. reading ID & revision numbers. target responds: ID=0x0007, REV=0xAA, status=0x90 le. reading CS and BM registers. If. setting GPIO ports to initial values. test 1 passed. Enter Targe 's serial number (leave blank to abort): (max is 16777215) 12345678

Note: enter your serial number under the 12345678 (8-digit guide). This helps you be sure you have entered exactly 8 digits. The 1st digit must be a zero (0).

2. Press ENTER key to complete programming.



3. Type "exit" and press ENTER to exit the Factory Test Mode.



STEP-9 RESETTING THE TARGET BOARD

- Make sure the target board is on the I2C buss with the operating CPU.
 - 1. Press the **[SW-1] button on the Target Board** (this will not cause a visible result on the emulator). The reset button is on the front corner of the target board.
 - 2. Type "boards" command to confirm the Target Board has come back online.

NOTE: It make take a minute for the CPU to pick up the Target Board. You can reissue the **boards command** as many times as you like until your board comes online.

Con fts:	figuration 635 DPI> e	programming xit	- comple	te				
> boa Ref	irds Type	Serial #	Version	Boot	Pos	Status	Age	Usi
1 1	635-CPU 635-DPI	03000001 03003162	10.4.9 10.4.9	10.4.9 10.4.9	1 16	NORMAL	7	1
>								~

STEP-10 ADDRESSING THE TARGET BOARD (600-MODEL ONLY)

SKIP THIS SUBSECTION IF THE TARGET BOARD IS A 635 MODEL WITH DIPSWITCHES

- 1. At *TeraTerm* prompt, Type "config" command and press <Enter> key
- 2. Select the target board *number* and press <Enter> key
- 3. type "yes" to begin configuring board.
 - » A 635-model target board has dipswitch addressing and should not need to be reconfigured.
 - » A 600-model target board will experience a reset to the factory ID (34), which is not valid on the I2C buss.
- 4. Enter a valid/unique Board ID (1-16 is valid). Use same ID number that was in the board previously.

IMPORTANT: If the target board was a CPU, then you must reconfigure the IP Address, Subnet and Gateway Addresses - as well as the Event Server IP Address/port numbers.

- 5. Press **<Enter> key** as many times as needed to skip other settings.
- 6. Type "yes" to save configuration.
- 7. Type "boards" again to confirm your board is online and is configured as expected.

See the Appendix for tips on recovering the board number if you forgot to obtain it.

STEP-11 REMOVING CABLES

- 1. Remove the **14-pin Factory Ribbon Cable** if you haven't already done so.
- 2. Be sure that all boards are properly connected to the I2C buss and power harness.
- 3. Reset the main CPU and make sure all daughter boards come up and are reporting the correct flash code version and IDs. (issuing the boards command again)
- 4. Disconnect the USB/Serial cable from the 635-CPU(FTS).
- 5. Close and secure the panel door.

STEP-12 LOADING DATA & CONFIRMING OPERATION

- If the target board was the CPU or DSI (600 or 635) you must reload data to restore the Controller memory from the System Galaxy software GCS Loader Program.
- As best practice, you may want to load data regardless of the type of target board, to ensure proper operating data.
 - 1. Open System Galaxy and log-in with the master level login.
 - 2. From the Hardware Tree, right-click on the Loop Name that the target panel belongs to.
 - 3. Choose 'Load' from the context menu, to open the GCS Loader program.
 - 4. Select the *Controller Name* of the target panel you need to load.
 - 5. Select on the Load Data tab and select to load all data/all cardholders.
 - 6. Click the Load button and allow the panel to load.
 - 7. Perform any walk-tests or system checks to confirm the system is performing correctly.

See the Appendix for description of the GCS Loader if needed.

5. Appendix – TIPS and HELP

Related Galaxy Reference Manuals:

- 635-FTS Factory Testing Guide
- 635-FTS Factory Programming Guide (THIS GUIDE)
- 635 Web Server Configuration Tool
- 635-600 Hardware Installation Guide
- System Galaxy Software User Guide

About Loading the System Data

Covers loading system data back into the CPU after factory flashing. Also applies to factory flashing a DSI board.

- Open Hardware Tree from menu View > Hardware Tree if needed.
 - Open the GCS Loader from the System Galaxy Hardware Tree by right-clicking on the Loop Name that the target panel belongs to. Then choose the Load option from the shortcut menu.
 - Perform a full load of all data including **all card data**.



Tips for Finding a Board ID within System Galaxy

Factory flashing a 600 daughter board will reset the ID to the factory-default Board ID (34). You must return the board to its normal ID used in the system programming to restore proper operation. You want to avoid having to reconfigure system devices.

If the Board is not reporting/detected on the I2C Buss (Panel Status Page OR TeraTerm emulator), you can find the last known board ID by looking in the System Galaxy programming screens.

FINDING A 600-DPI BOARD ID (FROM READER PROPERTIES SCREEN)

If your board is a 600-DPI, go to the Reader Properties screen of the reader that is wired to your board.

- Open System Galaxy and login with master login as needed
- From menu, choose Configure > Hardware > Doors/Readers
 - 1. Select the Loop Name that the reader belongs to.
 - 2. Select the Controller Name that the reader belongs to.
 - 3. Select the Reader Name for the desired reader.
 - » The Board number is listed above the Reader Name field.

Loop:	F H S (#3)		Control Unit:	All Controller	s
	Cluster: 003, Cont: 001, Bro	t: 14, Sect: 1-0			
Reader Name:	FHS DOOR 1	•	Notes:		
Reader Type	Proximity				
	Wiegand Standard				
General	Timing/Schedules	Relay 2 Setting:	s Alarr	n Options	Pas:
Ac	cess Rules	Elevator So			

FINDING A 600-DIO BOARD ID - (FROM INPUT/OUTPUT PROPERTIES SCREEN)

If your board is a 600-DIO, go to the Properties screen of an Input or Output that is wired to your board.

- Open System Galaxy and login with master login as needed
- From menu, choose Configure > Hardware > Inputs (or Outputs)
 - 1. Select the Loop Name that the device belongs to.
 - 2. Select the Controller Name that the device belongs to.
 - 3. Select the Input/Output Name for the desired device.

» The Board Number is listed above the Input/Output Name field.

Alarm Events	Master Event Window Controllers Rea	ader Ports Inputs x
Loop:	FHS (#3)	- <u>E</u> dit
Control Unit:	All Controllers	
Port Type:	Digital I/O Board (8 Inputs, 4 Outputs) Cluster: 003, Cont: 001, B: 2, 9: 2, I: 01	Operator Response In
Input Name:	[01] Cmd Scr Input (norm · Vo 01 arming) 🔹	
ARM Schedule:	× NEVER *	
Mode:	Normal Input 👻 📝 Show In Tree	
Link to I/O Groups 0	ptions CCTV Events Graphic Symbols DVF	Board ID is above Input/Output name.
I/O Group(s):	I/O Offset: Acknow	ledge Schedule

FINDING A 600-SERIES BOARD ID (FROM THE CONTROLLER PROPERTIES SCREEN)

Another place to see all the board numbers that are known to be connected to the panel, is by looking Controller Properties screen.

- Open System Galaxy and login with master login as needed
- From menu, choose Configure > Hardware > Controllers(600)
 - 1. Select the Loop Name that the controller belongs to.
 - 2. Select the Interface Boards tab if needed

DO NOT CLICK THE GET BOARDS INFO BUTTON.

» The Board numbers are listed in the first column showing the Board/Section #.

luster/Loop:	FHS (#3)	Add New	
`ontroller ID:	1 💿 Order by ID 💿 Order by Nam		
Jame:			
	Reports 🔻		
Jo Not Allow Data	Loading: Do Not Allow FLASH loading:	Cancel	
Interface Boards	CPU Boards Alarm I/O Groups Options		
Board/Section	n # Description	Sections	Add Board
≊ 2	Digital I/O Board (8 Inputs, 4 Outputs)	2	Add Board
÷	Dual Serial Interface Board	2	Edit Board
÷	Card Tour Manager (CTM)	1	Delete Board
÷ 14	Dual Reader Interface (635)	2	
			Section In Use
			Section Not In Use

FINDING a CPU IP Address (IN THE CONTROLLER PROPERTIES SCREEN)

The last known IP Address for your 635-CPU(FTS), is found in the Controller Properties screen.

- Open System Galaxy and login with master login as needed
- From menu, choose Configure > Hardware > Controllers(600)
 - 1. Select the Loop Name that the controller belongs to.
 - 2. Select the CPU Boards tab if needed
 - » The last-known IP Address is displayed in the [Last IP Address] field.

uster/Loop:	F H S (#3)		•	Add New	
optroller ID:	1	🔘 Order by ID	Order by Name	Edit	
lame:	Cluster #: 3-1	Init # 1	•	Delete	
		21111 11. 1]	Apply	Reports -
$) = 0 + 0 + 0 + \cdots + 0 = 0$			Letter at the second se		
70 NOT Allow Data	a Loading: 🔄	Do Not Allow FLA	ASH loading:	Cancel	
Interface Boards	CPU Boards	Do Not Allow FL/ Alarm 1/0 Groups	ASH loading:	Cancel	
Interface Boards Select CPU:	CPU Boards	Do Not Allow FL/ Alarm I/O Groups Serial #	ASH loading:	Cancel	
Interface Boards Select CPU: CPU # 1	CPU Boards 4	Do Not Allow FL/ Alarm I/O Groups Serial # 0300001	ASH loading: Options Last IP Addre 18 J92.168.17.	Cancel ess 150	
Interface Boards Select CPU: CPU # 1	CPU Boards 4	Do Not Allow FL/ Alarm I/O Groups Serial # 0300001	ASH loading: Options Last IP Addre 18 192.168.17.	Cancel ess 150	
Interface Boards Select CPU: CPU # 1 Unused	CPU Boards 4 Model #	Do Not Allow FL/ Marm I/O Groups Serial # 0300001	ASH loading: Options Last IP Addre 192.168.17.	Cancel ess 150	

If you cannot use the last known IP Address to connect to your panel, then see the next section about installing the Web Config Tool and connect via Ethernet connection – or Go to Chapter 4 to TeraTerm terminal emulator via direct serial connection.

How to Install the 635 Web Server Config Tool

Normally, the **embedded 635 Web Server – Panel Status page** can be opened by typing the **CPU IP Address** into a PC/Browser.

If the IP Address is unknown, or needs to be configured, the *client-side 635 Web Server Config Tool* is able to auto-detect the MAC Addresses of the CPUs that are on the *same network segment* as the panel.

If you cannot get to the same network segment as the panel, you can install the **635 Web Server Config Tool** on a laptop and temporarily jack directly into the on-board Eternet port on the CPU. Another option is to use TeraTerm emulator to connect to the Serial Port on the CPU (which requires a serial programming cable).

ONLY INSTALL this tool IF you need to find the CPU by MAC Address.

INSTALLING THE 635 WEB SERVER CONFIGURATION TOOL

- The latest version of Firefox browser is recommended/needed.
- The Galaxy_635_Web_Server executable is found in the 635 Web Tool folder on the Factory Test CD.
 - 1. Copy the *Galaxy_635_Web_Server executable file* to your laptop.
 - 2. Double-click on the Web Tool.exe file to launch the install program.
 - » When finished, the 635 Web Tool **desktop icon** web_server should be installed on your desktop.

🕞 🕞 🗣 📕 🔸 Computer 🔸 Removable Disk (E:) 🔸 Factory Test 🔸 635WebServerTool 🛛 👻 🍫 Search 635WebServerTool									
File Edit View Tools Help									
Organize 🔻 Share with 🔻	В	urn New folder							0
🛛 🕌 Local Disk (C:)	*	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size				
 Removable Disk (E:) Image: Image of the second second		🕼 Galaxy_635_Web_Server_	6/2/2011 9:45 AM	Application	2,413 KB				
Factory Test 506E	ш								
🛛 🖟 600 Config Utility									
635WebServerTool									
Þ 퉲 EPROMS	-								

PATH: CD\Factory Test\635WebServerTool\Galaxy_635_Web_Server_V106.exe (shown)

USING THE 635 WEB SERVER CONFIGURATION TOOL

This tool is designed to find the Galaxy MAC Addresses from your local PC/Browser.

- The latest version of Firefox browser is recommended/needed.
- The door to the panel enclosure must be open for the Web Tool to detect MAC Addresses.



- 1. Double-click the **desktop icon** to open the 635 Web Tool and detect the MAC Addresses.
 - a) The Browser will list only the Galaxy MAC Addresses
 - b) Click the serial number link to configure the IP Address and network settings if needed.
 - c) Click the IP Address link to go to the Panel Status page you can complete all the tasks required by using the 635 Web Config Tool.
- » NOTE: The **panel door must remain open** if you need to configure a Board ID for a 600-series target board.

🚖 Favorites	88 🔹 🏉 http	://127.0.0.1:81	04/in ×			1	• • • • • •	9 ▼ <u>P</u> age ▼ §	Safety +
				All	Panels Sun	nmary			
	Index	Panel's Serial	Current / Configured			Current	Web	DHCP	
	Number	Location	Number	IP Address	Net Mask	Gateway	Mac Address	Enabled	Enabled
	1		3000001	<u>192.168.17.150</u> 192.168.17.150	255.255.255.0	192.168.16.1	00:0cfa:2d:c6:c1	1	0
Click Serial N. ~ view & cha ~ enable & d	umber to oper ange IP Addres isable Web an	n Network Co ss/ network se id DHCP optio	nfig screen: ettings of CPU Ins	, t	CPU's curren	it network settin	gs	<u> </u>	1
		Click <i>IP Addre</i> ~ view & cha ~ synch pan	ess to open P ange panel co el time with P	anel Status screen: nfiguration C/Server the boards			Web a for cor NOTE	nd DHCP optic venience (1=e : click Serial I change thes	ons are show nabled) Number to e options